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MEMBER AMERICAN B,ISTnUI[ OF CIRTfflED PUBLIC ACCOUNIANT$ DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A pROFESSIONAl, COFLPORATION INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Nmchitoches, Louisiana 

MEMBER SOCI[1Y OF I.OUISIA'4 CER11FIED PUBt IC AC COLJ~I AN I ', 

We were engaged to audit the Statement of Financial Position of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. As of Jammry 31, 1997, and related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s rn~magement. Detailed accomlts re:ceivable records for patient revenues and detailed properly and equipment records were not reconcilable to control accounts and we were unable to confirm the accounts receivable amount of $240,258 and the property and equipment amount of $2,533,193 or to deterrnine the ammmts through alternative procedures. Therefore, we were not able to satisfy ourselves about the amounts at which patient accounts receivable and the related allowm]ce for uncollectibles and the amounts at which propelty and equipment and the related accumulated depreciation are recorded in the accompanying Statement of Financial Position at January 31, 1997 and the amount of bad debt expense and depreciation expense in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the year then ended. Because of the significance of the mater discussed in the preceding paragraph, the scope of our work was not sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph. 
Certified Public Accountants Seplember 30, 1997 

22(} WINDSOR PLACE " ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445-2017 2003 FOURTH STREET, SUITE B , IONIiSVILLE, LOUISIANA 71343 ~ (3181 339-6505 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCHITOCHF, S, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION JANUARY 31, 1997 
UnrestricIg.t _d. General 

ASSETS Cash Grants receivable Patient Accounts receivable (net of estimated uncollectible amounl of $61,883) Other Receivables Prepaid expense Property and equipment Net of accumulated depreciation Total Assets LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS Accounts payable Acciued payroll Due to State of Louisiana Line of Credit - Exchange Bank Note Payable - Exchange Bank Capital lease payable Total liabililies NET ASSETS Unrestricted Temporarily Restricted Total net assets 

$ 84.043 
178,375 613,679 24,718 
1,78o,~88 $2,281253 
$ 150,658 30,178 74,174 101,513 150,025 ~77,7.4_~ 1,080,293 
1,200,960 
1.200.960 Total Liabilities and Net Assets $2,281,25_3_ 

Temporarily Restricted WIC Fund 
$ 6,535 19,328 

$2,183 

$ 90,578 19.328 178,375 613,679 24,718 1.380.088 $2.307.116 
$ 150,658 32,361 74,174 101,513 150,025 ~7~,745 2,183 1,082,476 

23.680 23,680 $25,863 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 
2 

1,200,960 23.680 1.224.640 



NATCIUTOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCH1TOCItES, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

REVENUES AND OT/IER SUPPORT Patient Service Revenue (net of contractural allowances) RH) (Sect 330) Grant WIC Grant Third party cost reimbursement Miscellaneous Medicaid Application Fees Interest Total revenues and other support EXPENSES Salsxies Payroll taxes Fringe benefits Continuing Education Office supplies and expense Medical drugs & supplies Contract labor Depreciation Publications Rent expense Repairs and maintenance Insurance Legal and accounting Interest Bad debt expense Miscellaneous Other lab fees Utilities and telephone other taxes Medical billing Total Expenses DECREASE IN NET ASSETS 

~nyestric_~t~d General Fund__ 
$ 1,077,403 1,g77,043 376,565 4,338 2,700 __._..22 s.~ 3.3402.~ 
1,901,20g 120,72! 169,420 37,618 103,471 184,362 11,507 98,512 2,221 44,g82 59,2.45 46,4.58 30,505 54,596 208,568 1,930 84,257 125,085 14,294 5 k9~ 
(9,9] 1) NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,229,234 GAIN ON SALE: OF EQUIPMENT 3,451 ADD (DEDUCT) TRANSFERS (2 ] .~ 1___43 NET ASSETS, END OF PERIOD 

Temporarily Restricted WIC Fund 
$124,333 

137,369 10,509 
8,986 

156.864 (32,531) 34,397 21.814 
See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 

$ 1,077A03 1,877,043 124,333 376,565 4,338 2,700 2,850 3.465.232 
2,038,577 131,230 169,420 37,618 112,457 184,362 11,507 98,512 2,221 44,882 59,245 46,458 30,505 54,596 208,568 1,930 84,257 I25,085 14,294 51.950 3.507.67~ (42,442) 1,263,631 3,451 



NATCItlTOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCItlTOCItES, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS JANUARY 31, 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Increase (Decrease) in net assets Adjustments to Reconcile Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets to Net Cash Provided by Operations Depreciation Allowance fo~ bad debt Gain on Sale of Equipment (Increase) I)ecrease in Operating Assets: Prcpaids Accounts Receivables Due from Oilier Funds Deposits Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities: Accounts Payable Accrued Payroll Deferred Revenue Due to State Agencies Net Cash from Operating Activities CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchase of Equipmen| Net Cash from Investing Activities CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Loan Proceeds - Note Payable Net Borrowing - Line of Credit Principal payment of Capital Lease Net Cash Flows froal Financing Activities 

Unresti~led General Fired 
Temporarily _~Jrieted 

$ (9,91]) $(32,531) $ (42,442) 
98,512 208,568 (3,451) (24,718) (514,686) 32,661 
(19,499) 30,178 (150,000) _ _7_4. J.2.4. 
. (86.216) _~863..L63 
150,025 101,513 .(48,~87) 3._Q2,.~.1 

2,183 
_...2,.313 

98,512 208,568 (3,451) (24,718) (482,025) 
(19,499) 32,361 (150,000) 74,174 (308.5201 
(86.216~ (86.216~ 
150,025 101,513 (48.687/ 202.851 NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (194,198) 2,313 (191,885) CASH AND CAStl EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD CASH AND CASI1 EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD Supplemental Disclosure Cash Paid for Interest 

2782,2_~41 .._._4:,222 282.463 

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natehitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (A) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES 

Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Clinic, was organized under the provisions of R.S. 1950, title 12, Chapter 2, as amended, State of Louisiana in December 1977, and recorded in the Non-Profit Corporations Book of the State of Louisiana. The Clinic is organized to provide efficient and effective health care through the operation of a health delivery system designed to meet the medical needs of the colrmmnity, i.e., early detection diagnosis, and treatment of illnesses and injuries; to facilitate an understanding of the desirability of initiating a program of preventive medicine; and to generally improve and promote the improvement of the community, civilly and socia/ly. The Clinic provides comprehensive primary health care to area residents, with particular care for the socio-economically disadvantaged. The areas served are Tallulah, Leesville, Logansport and Natchitoches. The services are provided tltrough outpatient clinics with a referral program, health education, and limited medical services for hospitalization. ]'he corporation is organized on a non-stock membership basis. Fifty-one (51%) percent of the members of the board are chosen by the population served. After the election of Board Members in December, the officers are sealed at the next regularly scheduled meeting in January. 
In December 1977, Congress passed the Rural Health clinic Services Act of 1977 (Public Law 95-210) to provide financial support for facilities using physician extenders to provide primary health care services in rural, medically underserved areas. The law authorized Medicare and Medicaid payments to qualified rural health clinic,; for covered health care services furnished by or under the direction of nurse practitioners and physician assistants. In order to qualify as a rural health clinic under Medicare and Medicaid, a facility must be under the general direction of a physician, be located in a rural area and operate in an area designated by the Department of Health and Human Services as having a shortage of personal health services, be engaged essentially in providing outpatient primary medical care, and meet health and safety requirements prescribed by Medicare and Medicaid regulations. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitochcs, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) During the year ended January 31, 1997, the Clinic's operations were funded by a Community Health Service Rural Health Initiative (RHI) Grant awarded under Section 330 of the Public Health Services Act, as amended. Various restrictions are placed on expenditures ofthese funds. Reconciliations of used and unused funds me prepared at the end of the program year and the propriety of such funds is determined by the Department of Health mad Human Services. (B) REPORTING ENTITY "Ihe accompanying financial statements of the Clinic presents the financial position and result of operations of the unrestricted fund and temporarily restricted fund. All activities of the Clinic are included in these financial statements. Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Clinic have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. (C) FUND ACCOUNTING The accounts of the Clinic are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. Under fund accomlting, resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds established according to their nature and purpose. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund; however, in the accompanying financial statements, funds that have similar characteristics have been combined into fund groups. In accordance with SFAS No. 117, fund balances are classified on the statement of financial position as unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets based on the absence or existence and type of donor-imposed restrictions. 
Unrestricted 
Accounts for resources that can be expended currently. This fund represents the part of net assets that have not been restricted for identified purposes by donors and grantors. Unrestricted net assets also include assets whose use is contractually limited. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 'FILE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
Temporarily Restricted Accounts for the WIC Grant funds that can be expended currently, but only for a specified purpose designated by the grantor. (D) BUI)GETS A budget outlining grant awards, program revenues and expenses is submitted prior to the start of each fiscal year for approval by the Departmenl of Health and Human Services. Budget amendments and chanlges are allowed by prior approval from the Department of ttealth and Human Services. (E) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased assets or at fair market value on the date of any donation, r)epreciation is provided in the financial statements over the estimated useful lives of the depreciable assets on the straight-- line basis. The following estimated useful lives are generally used: 

Building Furniture and fixtures Equipment 40 years 5 - 20 years 5 - 15 years Expenses for additions, major renewals and betterments are capitalized and expenses for raaintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. 
The cost of assets retired of otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal. Gains or losses resulting from property disposal ale credited as charged to operations currently. (F) COMPENSATED ABSENCES Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center's employee benefils for vacation and sick pay do not vest. Accordingly, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 1 SUM!MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) (G) TO.TAL COLUMNS Total columns on the financial statements are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of operations or changes in cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. 
(H) UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS The Clinic estimates an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based on prior experience of management. (I) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS For the purpose of the financial statements, the Clinic considers all demand deposits and time deposits with an initial maturity of three monlJas or less to be cash equivalents. (J) INCOMI~ TAX STATUS The Clinic is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(C) (3) of the Internal Revenue code. However, income fi'om certain activities not directly related to the, Clinic's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In addition, the Clinic qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction trader Section 190(b) (1) (A) and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under Section 509(a) (2). 

NOTE 2 CASIt 
At year end, the carrying amount of the Clinic's cash was as follows Checking $90,57g 
All deposits were held in local banks and insured by the FDIC 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 3 PRO, PERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

A smnmary of property and equipment and accumulated depreciation at January 3 1997, is provided: 
Beginning Balance Land $ 110,000 Building 1,697,820 Furniture & Equip. 671,426 Vehicles 88,088 Totals $2,567,334 
Beginning Balance Building $ 475,817 Furniture & Equip. 578,776 Vehicles 88.088_ Totals $1.142.681 NOTE 4 OTIIER RECEIVABLES 

onertv and Eauinmen 

Ending Additions Disposals Balance $53,261 42,876 2.32_5 $28.512 
$ 529,078 621,652 _(88,088) 2,375 _(88.088) $1,153,105 

Other receivables at January 31, 1997, consisted of the following Due form IRS $ 30,532 Sales Tax Receivable 12,224 Sale of Equipment 201 Other 435 Third Party Cost Reimbursement 716,972 Less: Allowance for disputed Cost (146.685) Total $613,679 



NATCtIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitochcs, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1.997 
NOTE 4 OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) In accordance with Ominbus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1989 (OBRA 89) and 1990 (OMBRA 90), reimbursement polMes for reasonable cost reimbursement were established for a certain set of Federally-Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) such as the Clinic, rather than reimbursement based upon allowable charges for each service provided. Medicaid reimbursement became effective April 1, 1990 and Medicare, October 1, 1991. 

At January 31, 1997, amounts due from Medicare and Medicaid fiscal intermediaries were $216,676 and $500,296 respectively. These settlement amounts are subject to audit and adjustment by the fiscal intermediaries. The amounts have been reflected in the.. financial statements as receivables and revenues, net of an allowance for disputed costs estimated at (25) twenty-five percent for the years ended 1995 and 1996, which have not been settled by fiscal intermediaries. 
NO~TE 5 BOARD OF DIRECTORS Each of the following directors served the Clinic without compensation 

Oswald Taylor, Sr. Oliver Simon Mary Lene Johnson Rosia Humphrey Justice Mallard Huey Daily Diane Jones Lue Kennedy James Calhoun Tony Wallace Dennis McGaskey 
NOTE 6 CON'FINGENCIES 

President Vice President Secretary 

The Natchitoches Outpatient Medical (;enter, Inc. evaluates contingencies based upon the best available evidence. The Clinic believes that no allowance for loss contingencies is considered neeessmy. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES (continued) The principal contingencies are &:scribed below 

Grant Awards 
The ability of the Clinic's continued operations is contingent upon continued funding from the Public Health Service. 
Unubligated Federal Funds The Clinic's grant funds, including amounts awarded for the current budget period, and estimated or actual unobligaled federal funds carried over from prior budget periods are authorized for the Clinic's use only in the current budget period in the amount specified by the PHS awarding office in an approved budget on a Notice of Grant Award. As a result of carryovers ofunobligated grant funds, the total amount of fimds available in the grant accotmt may exceed the federal share of the approved budget. Those funds are not automatically available to the Clinic. The PItS awarding office exercises sole discretion as to the use of those funds. Grantor Agencies Amounts received from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grarltor agencies, principally the federal government. An)' disallowed expenses, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability. The amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed cannot be determined at this time. 1RS Information Return 
Form 990, Internal Revenue Service information return of tax exempt organizations is due on the fifteenth (15th) day of the fifth (5) mouth following the end of the fiscal year more specifically, June 15. "]'he returns for the fiscal years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997 were not filed on time and are subject to penalties up to $5,000 per year'. The: Clinic has not recorded a liability in the financial statements for these amounts and expects to have the penalties waived under extenuating circumstances. As of September 30, 1997 this issue had not been resolved. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TItE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

NOTE 7 CAPITAL LEASES The Clinic leases several pieces of equipment and a modular building at file Tallullah site. Becanse the leases contain a bargain purchase option, the substance of the leases are that the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is financing the acquisition of the assets through the lease, and, accordingly, it is recorded in the Clinic's assets and liabilities. The original cost of the property under eapilal lease at January 31, 199'7 is as follows: Modular Building Phone System ECG Machine Chemistry Analyzer Ultra Sound Machine 
$736,350 12,758 7,100 97,248 $ 39,900 "/11e following is a schedule of filture minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of tile net minimum lease payrnents, as of January 31 199'7: 

YEAR ENDING JANUARY 31, 1998 $216,789 1999 177,472 2000 162,196 2001 146.fi.9..2. Total Minimum lease payments 703,149 Less - Amount replesenting interest (129,404) Present Value of Minimum lease payments $573, 4~ 
NOTE 8 OPERATING LEASES The Clinic provides health selvices in leased facilities located in Leesville and Logansport, Louisiana. The facilities are leased from two unrelated parties. Both leases are twelve (12) month operating leases which are renewable by written notice. The Leesville facility lease is cancelable by mailing a ninety (90) day written notice of intention to terminate. Rental expense for those leases was $37,860 for the year ended January 31, 1997. 



NATCHITOCItES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDE]) JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 9 NOTES PAYABLE 
The note payable obligations of the Clinic at January 3I, 19!)7 arc as follows 
8.25% note payable with the Exchange Bank and Trust Co., the accrued interest mid principal ale due on April 24, 1997. $150,025 
Operating line of credit with the Exchange Bank and Trust Co., bearing a current variable interest rate of 8.25%. The line requires monthly interest only payments with the principal and accrued interest due at maturity on March 15, 1997. The debt is secured by a collateral mortgage note dated March 15, 1996 for $150,000. The line of credit limit is $125,000. $101.513 

NOTE 10 DUE TO STATE OF LOUISIANA 
Total 

The Clinic owes the State I_)epartment of Health and Hospitals the over paid Medicaid claims of the Delta Rural Health Services in Tallullah and also at thc Desoto Comprehensive Health Services in Logansport. The over payment years arc 1992, 1993 and 1994. The over claim balances due back are the following: 

NOTE 11 REVFNUES 
Desoto Delta Total 

$ 7,248 . 66,926 L2_4,174 
The Clinic operates principally from grants awarded by federal and state government and generates revenues through patient fee charges. The patient fee chargcs consisted of the following: Medicare Medicaid Sliding Fee (net) Other 

$ 289,840 485,982 473,428 28.153 



NATCIHTOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
During the year ended January 31, 1997, the Clinic sold several pieces of equipment and automobiles. These sales were made to two employees and one (1) Board Member. The following table depicts the nature of the transactions: 
Name and Title Willie Valeria, Employee Huey Daily, Board Member Debra Worsham, Employee 

Ilem_Sold Sale Price Amount Due Car Vans Equip NOTE 13 THIRD PARTY REIMBURSEMENT 
$2,000 551 900 

-0- $201 -0- 
In accordance with Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1989 (OBRA 89) and 1990 (OBRA 90), reimbursement policies for reasonable cost reimbursement were established for a certain set of Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) such as the Clinic, rather than reimbursement based upon allowable charges for each service provided. Settlement costs reports completed at year end are subject to audit and adjustment b3 intermediaries, in particular, United Government Services and Tri-Span. 

NOTE 14 SELF INSURANCE 
The Clinic's medical plan for eligible employees and their dependents is funded through a self insurance plan. The Clinic has hired a third party administrator to handle all claims and make all payments. The Clinic transfers funds to a special checking account which is designated to handle only medical payments. After the funds have been transferred, the third party administrator processes the checks and remits them to the board for approval and signatures. 



NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchitoches, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TItE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 NOTE 15 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
Certain errors, resulting in both the overstatement and understatement of previousl.~ reported assets, liabilities and expenses of the prior year were corrected this year resulting in the following changes to net assets as of January 31, 1996: Net Assests As previously reported Con:ection As adjusted 

$1,429,091 _~165,460) 
NOTE 16 FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE CLASSIFICATION In accordance with (FASB) NO. 117, the following table depicts all the expenses tbl the year ended January 31, 1997 in their functional categories. 

Program Services Administrative 
GENERAL FUND $1,880,656 1,470, I 54 3,350,810 NOTE 17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

WIC FUND TOTAL 156,864 156.864 $2,037,520 1,470,154 3,507,674 
At January 31, 1997, the Clinic had a $101,513 line of credit and a note payable in the amount of $150,025 with the Exchange Bank and Trust of Natchitoches Subsequent to year end, the organization refinanced the two debts into one consolidated note. The note requires a monthly payment of $3,027 over 120 months. The interest rate on the new note is 8.5% with a first payment datc of July 3, 1997. 
In July 1997, the Board of Directors hired a management consulting firm to assist iz restructuring the operations of the Clinic. The changes are centered on lift following: Fiscal Accountability Personnel Restructured Debt Improved Health Care Corporate Governing Documents 



NATCItlTOCItES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC Natchiloehes, Louisiana NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR FNDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
NOTE 18 I'ATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Accounts receivable at January 31, 1997 consisted of the following 

Medicare Sliding Fee Medicaid Private Insurance Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles Tota 

$137,610 72,803 23,522 6,323 (6_L~88_33) ~!~75 



 



We: were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. I n our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We were engaged to audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government ~a~!diling Standard& issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Instituticms." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
The management of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is responsible for establishing and inaintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits mid related costs of internal control structure policies and plocedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide inaaagement with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with ln~taagcment's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in ~tecordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors or irregularities may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also. projection of any ewduation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedurcs may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. 
220 WINDSOR PLACE ~ ALEXANDRIA, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445-2017 2003 FOURTH STREET, SUITE B ~ JONESVH,LE, LOUISIANA 71343 ~ (318) 339-6505 



In planning and performing our engagement to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, lnc. for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, we obtained an understanding of the internal control structure. With respect to the internal control structure, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk in order to determine our procedures for tt~e purpose of expressing our opinion oi1 the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on lhc internal control slructure. ?~ccordingly, wc do not express such an opinion. 
Fm the purpose of this report, we have classified the significant internal control structure policies and procedures in the following categories: cash receipts, payroll, property and equipment, cash disbursements and grant administration. 
Fm all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding oflhe design of relevanl polices and procedures and determined whether the), have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. Of the management suggestions made for the yem' ended January 31, 1996, the following has been implemented: (A) the employee credentials are now checked. We noted certain malters involving the internal control structure and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significam deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control structure that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the organization's ability to record, process, summarize arid report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in lhe financial statements. These rcportable conditions include 
SLIDING FFES 
Condition: The Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., did not consistenlly obta income verification from patients. 
Criteria: The regulations require that all patients who can pay for services be charged according to a sliding fee schedule. 
Effect: If the Oiganization does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic wi not be able to collect all funds duc. 
Recommendation: The Clinics should verify all patient incomc and includc documentalion in the patient file. 



BANK RECONCI LIATIONS Condition: Bank reconciliations were not preformed on a regular monthly basis or agreed to the general ledger cash accounts. Criteria: Grant recipients are required to safeguard all assets of the organization. 
Effect: The organization could have misappropriated grant funds and not be aware of the problem in a timely manner. Recommendation: All bank accounts should be reconciled monthly with their corresponding bank statements and should be compared to the books to insure that they agree. 3. PURCHASING SYSTEM 
Condition: The current system does not ensure that purchases of supplies and materials are made for the lowest available price. As a recipient of federal dollars, the organization is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Louisiana State contract. Criteria: Organizations receiving federal assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles. The grant goes further to require that all purchases for goods be necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program. 
Effect: Tile resulting effect is that the organization will pay more for goods than is necessary or reasonable. Recommendation: The organization should centralize the purchasing function and purchase as many items as possible under state contract. CONTRACT VI OLATIONS 
Condition: We noted that the organization was not making monthly payments under two (2) of their capital leases. Criteria: The lease contracts require that tile organization make monthly payments under the terms of the agreement. Effect: If the organization is found by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agreement, the lessor could require the return of the asset. 
Recommendation: In order to avoid undue hardship on the organization, all requirements under contractual agreement should be adhered to. 



5. 941 PAYROLL TAX RETURN Condition: The payroll tax liability reported on the form 941 was incorrect 
Criteria: l:or the year ended I)ecember 31, 1996, the organization did not linlit the anloun~ of social security tax paid for individuals who earn more than $62.700. 
Effect: The organization overpaid the: social security payroll tax 
Recommendation: The organization should review the tax roles published in the Circu&r E, Employer's Tax Guide. 

6. COS]-' REI?ORTS Condition: The organization did not file the Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for 1996 and 1997 in a timely manner. Criteria: :In order for the organization to recover amounts due for Medicaid and Medicare claims, the organization is required to file annual cost reports. Effect: The funds due the organization will not be paid over in a timely manner 
Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the cost reports are filed by the due date. 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Condition: The financial transactions for the year ended January 3 l, 1997 were not postc( to a general ledger. Criteria: OMI3 Circular A- 110 requires that the financial management system provide an accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of each federally sponsored project. 
Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having an accounting system accordance with ~,rant requirements. 
Recommendation: In order to reduce the risk of errors or irregularities, the accounting, system should record all financial transactions in the books in a timely manner. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATION Condition: The financial position of the organization was not compared to the budget on a regular basis. Criteria: OMB Circutar A-I 10 requires that the financial nmnagement system provide ~ comparison of outlays with budget amounts for each av, ara. Effect: Tile organization was unable to properly manage grant results 
Recommendation: The financial statements should be compared to the budget on a regulm basis. 
FIXED ASSETS 
Condition: Policies that are established to control which assets are capitalized or expended are not being followed. 
Criteria: OMB Circular A-1 10 requires that the financial managenaent system provide effective controls over and accountability of all property. 
Effect: Without the utilization of property controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corporate assets. 
Recommendation: Control policies should be modified to ensure that all assets which cos~ a predetet~nined amount arc being capitalized and recorded on the asset inventory list. I0. PROPERTY TAGS 
Condition: The fixed assets do not have property control tags Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-I 1 O, recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Without the assets being tagged, it will not be readily possible to know which assels belong to the corporation. 
Recommendation: The items purchased, which meet requirements established by the board for fixed assets, should have an identifying sticker or decal affixed to it. The sticker should have an identifying property number and it should also state that the asset is propcrt.v of the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. 



1 i. ASSET INVENTORY LIST 
Condition: The inventory list, which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequalel~ identii}~ the assets owned by the Natchiloches Outpatient Medical (;enter, ]nc. Criteria: In order to safeguard the assets in accordance with tile OMB Circular. the asset invcmory list should be complete. 
Effect: Withou| all assets being recorded on the asset list, the organization will not be able to adequately safeguard all assets. 
Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory list should be identified b.~ a serial number when possible and a tag ID number. 12. PHYSICAI. INSPECTION - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory of propert5 and equipment oil an annual basis. 
Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, fixed assets could be misappropriated. 
Recommendation: The organization should have someone from the accounting departmeut conduct an mmual physical inventory. 

13. SALES TAX Condition: The organization has beer, paying $488.97 a month in sales tax on the capita lease of the nmdular building in Tallullah. Criteria: In accordance with state law, tile organization is not responsible for sales tax on a modular building which is erected and permanently fixed to the location. Effect: The organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G.E. Capital 
llecommendation: The organization should approach G.E. Capital and make evcr~ attempt to reduce the capital lease obligation by the overpaid sales tax. 
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14. LEASE AGREEMENTS 
Condition: We noted that some of the lease documents were not on file within tile office 
Criteria: In order to properly execute all contractual obligations, the,, clinic should maintai all contracts in their current files. 
Effect: Without having the contracts readily available for inspection, the organization could violate the terms of the agreement and be exposed to monetary loss. 
Recommendation: All contracts should be maintained in the office 15. FORM 990 TAX RETURN 
Condition: Form 990, annual income tax return, was not filed on time for the years endc~ January 31, 1996 and 1997. Crileria: Internal Revenue procedures require that the returns be filed by the fifteenth (15 day of the fifth month following the close of the fiscal year. Effect: The organization could be subjected to penalties up to $5,000 per year per return Recommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and filed in timely manner. 16. LATE AUDIT REPORT 
Condition: "]q~e organization did not file their January 31, 1997 audit report with the St~t~ of Louisiana or their cognizant agency within the required time frarne. Criteria: In accordance with State law, the audit should be filed with the State of 1,ouisia~l: within six (6) months from the close of the fiseal year. The United State I)epartment o Health and Human Services requires that the audit be fled within four (4) months. Effect: The organization could possibly be sui~jccted to further grant restrictions Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the audit i~ preformed in a timely manner. 

17. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Condition: The accounts payable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger. 



Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. Effecl: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position 
Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts payable outstandine are recorded on the books and arc iistcd on the subsidiary .iota nm b} \,clmur and amount. 18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Condition:: The accounts receivable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a regulm basis and did not agree to the general ledl,er. Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management systcm should provkle for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position 
Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts receivable outstanding are recorded on the books and are listed in the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount. 

19. LOUISIANA STATE GRANT Condition: The organization returned to the Slate of Louisiana a grant amount of $150,000. Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes; 
Effect: Ineffective cash management system Recommendation: Attempts should be made to recover the returned grant funds 

20. ME1)ICAL SUPPLIES INVENTORY 
Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory on an annua basis. 
Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A- 11 O, the rccipienls of Federal Assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, supplies could be misappropriated. 
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Recommendation: The organization should have someone conduct an annual physica inventory. 
21. SALE OF ASSETS 
Condition: The organization sold several pieces of equipment without a formal bid process Criteria: In order to receive the maximum dollars for the items sold, the organization should have a policy to authorize the sale of assets through a bid process or through an external valuation procedure. 
Effect: The organization was not allowed |o sell assets to the highest bidder or receive the true value of the assets sold. 
Recomnlendation: Before any assets arc sold, the accounting department should attempt to acquire an external valuation or perform a public bid process. 

22. STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX Condition: The state quarterly payroll tax returns for the third and fourth quarter of 199~ were not filed or paid on time. Criteria: ']'he organization is required to file and pay the aforementioned reports bx October 31,. 1996 and January 31, 1997. Effect: Due to the failure to file and pay, the organization will be subjected to unnecessarx penalties and interest. Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to 
23. I'AYROLL TAX DEPOSITS 
Condition: The federal payroll tax coupon forms 8109 for the year were marked for the incorrect type of tax. 
Criteria: The organization is rcquircd to deposit and pay form 941 taxes to a bankinp institulion. 
Effect: Due to the failure to appropriately mark the tax coupons, the Clinic didn't receive proper credit. 
Recommendation: Tax coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible individual. 



24, EMPLOYEli" ~7-2 FORMS 
Condition: Tile social security tax and social security wages were incon'ectly reported era some of the W-2's for the year ended December 31, 1996. Criteria: The social security wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 Effect: As a result of reporting social security wages higher than the cap, the social sccurit) withheld and reported on the W-2 was incorrect. Recommendation: The amount withheld and reported on the W-2's should be in accordance with the Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide. 25. WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS Condition:: The organization could not locate copies of the WIC Program's reimbursement reports for the period February 1996 thru July 1996. As a result, the organization had to obtain copies from the State. Criteria: The grant requires that all original grant documents be kept on file for a minimum of four (4) years. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: All original grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years. 26. WIC DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Disbursement checks were made payable to cash Criteria: The W1C Program grant requires all checks be made payable to a vendor Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: In the future, checks should be made payable to the recipient and not cash. 27. WlC IgXPENI)ITURE REPORT 
Condition: When requesting reimbursement funds, the organization did not complete and submit a disbursement report for the month and for the grant period according to budge! category. 26 



Criteria: The grant requires that recipients submit a monthly expenditure report consistin~ of two (2) t;olumns, current expenses and a year to date, categorized by budget category. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommcndlation: The organization should tbllow all grant requirements in the comrac 
28. RHI i'AYROLL AUTHORIZATION Condition: Several of the rural health grant employees did not have an authorized payro amount documented in their file. Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural hcahh grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 
29. RH1 PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Several of the rural health grant employees' payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. 
Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 30. WIC I'AYROLL AUTIIO1OZATION 
Condition: Sew,'ral of the WIC grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all clnployees under the WIC gran should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: If the authorized payroll amount is not on file, it is possible to incorrectly pa) employees. 
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Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on filc 
31. WIC PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Several of the WIC gram employees' payroll did not agree to their authorizcc payroll amount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees undcr the WIC grant should have lheir authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. 
Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 32. I'ATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STA'FEMENT 
Condition: Some of the personnel files on the W1C Program employees did not contain a signed patient confidentiality statement. 
Criteria: The grant requires that employees wilh access to patient information sign a statement that all patient records are confidential. 
Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced 
Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure that they contain signed patient confidentiality statement. 

33. TIME SltEETS Condition: As a result of our tests, we noted that some of the WIC Program employee pa3 checks were not supported by time sheets. Criteria: The grant requires that all activities he supported by source documents 
Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced 
Recommendation: All WIC Progrmn pay checks should be supported by approved timt sheets. 
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34. CORPORATE BYLAWS 
Condition: The Board of Directors current Composition and Bylaws do not fully meet the requirements for the 42CFR 581 c.304. 
Criteria: The RHI Grant requires that the composition and selection of members be in accordancc with the rcquircmcuts of 42CFR 581 c.304. 
Effect: Failure of the governing board to meet the Rill Grant requirements, could rcsull in grant restrictions. 
Recommendation: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the RI 

35. AUTItOR1ZING SIGNATURES Condition: Some of the pay checks for the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing signatures. Criteria: All checks are required to have two (2) authorized signatures Effecl: Wilhoul the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without direct Board approval. Recommendation: All checks should have two (2) authorizcd signatures 
36. PAID INVOICES Condition:: There were instances where some of the invoices for the WIC Program could not be located. Criteria: As per the grant contracts, the organization is required to keep source documents on filc for at least (4) years. Effect: The organization could possibly have increased grant restrictions 
Recommendation: We recon-unend that all invoices bc kept on file and cancclcd with the carbon copy of the check stapled to the outside. 
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A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the inte:mal control structure elements does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors and irregularities in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not he detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course ot pertbrming their assigned functions. 
Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in thc internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, we believe if taken cumulatively the reportable conditions described above are a material weakness. These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of the procedures to he performed in our examination of the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. for the year ended January 31, 1997. This report is intended for the information of tim board of directors, management and the United States Department of Health and Human Services. However, this report is a matter of public record, and its distribution is not limited. 
Certified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
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MEMBER AMERICAN INS1 n L/T [ OF Cf RTIFIED PGIB[IC ACCOUNTANTS MEMB[R SOCIETY OF LOLJIS~AN CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC CC)LJ'~IAN r~ DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSION/kL C;ORPOIKATION 
INI)EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE BASEl) ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 
We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We were engaged to audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing ~I~!~dard_s, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Otl~er Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
Compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is the responsibility of the Organization's management. As part of obtaininv reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, wc performed tests of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. However, the objective of our engagement to audit the financial statements was not to provide an opinion on overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed the following instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards for which the ultimate resolution cannot presently be determined. Accordingly, no provision for any liability that may result has bee11 recognized in Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, lnc.'s January 31, 19!)7 financial statements. 
The conditions of noncompliance tested are described tlelow: 
1220 WINI)SOR PLACE ~ ALEXANDIIIA, LOUISIANA 71303 ~ (318) 443-3977 ~ FAX (318) 445-2017 2033 FOURTH STREET, SUITE B ~ JONESVILLE. LOUISIANA 71343 * (318) 339-6505 



SLIDING FEES 
Number of Items in Popula!i0q 

Condition: The Nalchitoches 10,530 Outpabent Medical Cenlcr. lnc, dit~ n, c,~ll~l~[Cllllx {~D~aln incolnc verilication Irom patients. Criteria: 1 he regulations require that all patient~ who can pay for services be charged according to a sliding fee schedule. Effect: If the Organization does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic will not be able to collect all fimds due. Recommendation: The Clinics should verify all patient income and include documentation in the patient file 2. BANK RECONCILIATIONS 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of ('om~'diance Ponulation 

Condition: Ilank reconciliations were not preformed on a regular monthly basis or agreed to the general ledgcl cash accounts Criteria: Grant recipients are required to safeguard all assets of the organization Effect: ~Ihc organization could have misappropriated grant thnds and not be aware of the ploblem in a thnely manner. Beeommendalion: All bank accounts should be reconciled monthly with their corresponding bang statements and should be compared to the books to insure that they agree. 3. PUBCIIASING SYSTEM Condition: qhe current system does not ensure that purchases of supplies and materials are made for the lowest available price. As a recipient of federa dollars, the organization is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Louisiana State contrazt. Criteria: Organizations receiving li~deral assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles The grant goes further to require that all purchases fo~" g(~ods be necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program 
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Number Number of of Items in Items Populalion ~~0 PURCIIASING SYSTEM (continued) Effect: The resulting eflbct is that the organization will pay more for goods than i5 necessary or reasonable. Rccommcndatb)n: The organizalion should centralize tile ptlrchasing fullction and purchase ~ many items as possible under state contract 4. CONTRACT VIOLATIONS 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of ~iane~ population 

Condition: We noted that tile ? organization was not making monthly payments under two (2) of their capital leases. Criteria; Tbe lease contracts require that the olganizatinn make monthly payments under the terms of the agreement Effect: If the organization is found by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agrcem(:nt, the lessor could require the return of the asset, Rctommeladatio~a: In order to avoid mldue hardship on the organization, all requirements under contractual agreement should be adhered to. 5. 941 PAYROLL TAX RETURN Condition: The p~yroll tax 4 liability reported on tile form 94~ was inconect. Criteria: I~or the year ended December 31, 1996, the organization did not limlt the amount of social security tax paid for individuals who earn more than $62,700. Effect: "lhc organization overpaid the social security payroll (ax Reeommendalion: "lbe organization should review the tax rules published ill the Circular E. Etnployl'r's 7ax Guide. COST REPORTS Condilion: The organizalioll did 10 not file the Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for 1996 and 1997 in a timely manner. 
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6. COST REPORTS (continued 
Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 

Criteria: in order 1Or the ~g~i'L,ati~ to recover a~u~ts dllc lot Medicaid alld Meclicare claim~, Ihe organization is required to tile annual cosl. rcl)orts. Effect: The funds due the organization will not be paid over in a timely manner. Recommendation: ~'he organization should take steps to ensule thai the Cosl reports are filed by the due d~tc. 7. F'INANCIAI, STATEMENTS Condition: The linancial transactions for the )'ear ended January 31, 1997 were not posted to a general ledger, Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management systel/l provide an accurate, current and complete disclosure of the lit~ancial results of each federally sponsored project Effect: Irregttlarities; could occur a_s a result of not having an accounting system in accordance with grant requirements. Ilecommendtltiorl: In order to reduce the risk el errors or irregularities, the accounting system should record all financial transactions in the books in a timely manne*. 8. RESIJLTS OF OPERATION Condition: 1he financial position of the organization was not compared to Ibe budget on a regular basis. Criteria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide a comparison ofoufiays with budget amounts for each award. Effect: "lhe organization was unable to properly manage grant results. 
~'t~ffcct is either normal not asecrlain~ble or n~t applicable 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of _Com_.~ia nee_ Population 
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Number Number of of Items in Items Ponulation Tes~d 

RESULTS OF OPERATION (continued) Recommendation: Tbe financial statements should bc compared to the budget on a r~:gular basis. FIXED ASSISTS Condition: Policies that arc established to control which &ssels are capitalized or expended are not being followed. Criteria: OMB Cilcular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide effective control:; over and accountability of all property. Elltctz Without the ~.ttilil afion of property controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corpolate assets. ReCommendation: Control policies should be modified to ensure that atI as~e~s which cost a predetermined amount are being capitalized and recorded on the asset inventory list. PROPERTYTAGS Conditioa: "lhe fixed assets do not have r~roperlY control tags. Criteria: In accordance wilh OMB Circular A-.110. recipients of federal assistance should adequately sal~:guard all assets. Effect: Without tile ~tssels being tagged, it will not be readily possible to know which assels belong to the corporation. Recommendalion: The items purchased, which meet requirements established by the board for fixed asseL~, should have an identifying sticker or decal affixed to it Thc sticker should have an identil~'ing properly number and it should also state that the assel is property of the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center. Inc. 
*l!ffcl:t is either normal, not asc~ertainablc or not applicable 
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ASSET INVENTORY I,IST 
Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amoum (d Items in Items in Amount of Items Not in Questioned Population l~t_ed ~lian..__c_~ Population ]'ested Compliance Cose, 

Condition: 1tie inventory list. which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequately identifi, Ih: assets owned b~ the Nalchiloches Ot~tpattcnt Medi~:al Celltc[. bit. Criteria: hi order to safeguard the axsets in accordance with the OMB Circular, the e~sset inventory list should be complete Effect: Without all assets being recorded on tile ~sset list. the organization witl not be able to adequately safeguard all ~sscts Recommendation: All a.~sets recorded on the asset inventou., ~isl should be idenlified by a serial number when po!;sible and a tag 1D number PIIYSICAL INSPECTI(IN - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMI;;NI" Condition: "fhc organizalion does not folmall~ conduct a physical inventory of property and equipment on an annual basis Crileria: In accordance with the OMB Circ ular A- 1 I 0, the recipients of federal assistance should adequately satcgua~d all a~sets Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspeclion on an annual basis, lixed assets could bc misappropriated Recommendation: The organization should bare someone flora tbe accounting deparlment conducl an annual physical inventory. SALES TAX Condition: "Ihe organization has been paying $488.97 a month in sales lax on the capital lease of the modular building in q allullah. Criteria: In accnrdance wilh state law, the orgznization is not responsible for sales lax on a modular building which is erected and permanently tixed to the location Effect: The organization incorrectly paid sales tax Ill G.E Capital. 
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SALES q[AX (continued) Reeommendafion: The organization should approach G.E, Capital and make eve~ attcm0t In reduce the capital lease obligation by Ihc overpaid sales tax. 4. LEASE AG REEI~H~NTS 

Number of Items in Population 

Condition: We noted thai some of~he lea~e docu~ems were Ixot on lile within the office. Criteria: In order to propelly execute all contractual obligations, the clinic should maintain all conuaels in their current files Effect: Wilhoul having tile contracts readily available for inspection, the organization could violate the teems of the a[!reemenl and bc exposed to nlonetary loss Recommendation: All contracls should be maintained in the office 5. FORM 990 TAX It, ETURN Condition: Fonn 99O, annual income tax retultl, was not filcd on time for the years ended January 31, 1996 and 1997. Criteria: Internal Revenue procedures rcquil'~ that the returns he filed by the fifteenth (15) day of the fifth month ft~llowing tile Close ol the fiscal year. Effect: The organization could be sulgjected to penalties tip to $5,000 per year per return. I{ecommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and filed in a timely rnanner. ,ATE AUDIT REPOR1 Condifion: The olganizalion did not file their January 31, 1997 audit report with the State of Louisiana or theil cognizant agency wilhin the required lime frame. 
* l fli:et is either normal, not asccrtainahle or not applicable 
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Number of Items in Poalulation LATE AUDIT I~EI'OR'I (continued) Criteria: In accordance with State law, the audit shouhl be filed with the State of I,ouisiaua within six (6) month~ lion~ the close of the fiscal )car I he Uniled Slate Deparlnlent of Itealth and Human Services requires thal the audit be lilcd within four (4) months. Effect: The organizati(m could possibly be subjected to filrthcr g~ant restdefious. Reeommtndation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the audit is preformed in a timely manner. 7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Condition: The account~ payable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledgeL Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide for currenl and accurate disclosure of the financial activities Effect: Tbe orgal~ization was nol able to properly analyze their financial position Recommendation: Steps should bc taken to ensur(: that all accounts payable oulslanding are recorded on the books and are listed on the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount ACCOUNTS RECIr, IVAI}LE Condition: Tile accounts receivable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a daily basis and did not agree to the general ledgeL Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110. the financial management system should provide for current aqd a~cmate disclosure of the financial activities Effect: Tile olganizalion was not able to properly analyze their financial position 
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Number Number of of Items in Items Population "l~~d_ ACCOUNTS RECE|VABI,F (continued Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure dlat all accounts receivable outstanding are recorded on the books arid are listed in the sllhsidiil~., jourlml by vendor arid amount. 9. LOUISIANA STATE GRAN1 Condilion: "Pile organization refunded to the State of Loalisiana a grant amount of $150,000. Criteria: 1 he grant could have been used for operational purposes Effeel: luefl~clive ~:ash management system. Recommendation: Attempts should be made to recover tile returned grant funds 20. MEDICAL SUPPI.IES INVENTOR~ Condilion: The organization * does not fomlally conduct a physical inventory, on an annual basis. Criteria: In accordance ',~ith '~he OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of Federal Assislance should adequately safeguard all assets Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical iuspectiml on an annual basis, supplies coutd be misappropriated Recommendation: 7he organization should have someone conduct an annual physical inventory. SAI,EOFASSETS Condition: 1be organization sold several piece:; of equipment withoul a formal bid process 

*1 fleet is either normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 
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21. SAL[" OF ASSETS (continued) Effect: the organization was not allowed to sell assets to tile highest bidder or rcceive the Jrue value ol the ,a_~:~cl~ sold Recommendation: Before any assets are sold, the accounting department should attempt to acquire an exterllal valuation or perform a public bid process 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested_ 

22. STATE IJNEMPI,OYMI~;NT TAX 

Number of Items Nol Dollar in Amount of Co,.~m_~lia n c_~ Population 

Condition: 1he slate quarterly 4 2 payroll tax returtls Ibr the third and fourlh quarter of 1996 were not filed or paid on lime. Criteria: qheorganization is required to file and pay the afore- mentioned reponx by October 31, 1996 and January 3 I, 1997. Eff~~l: Due to tile failure to file and p a~,', the organization will be subjected to unnecessary penalties and intere~l. Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to. 23. PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS Condition: The. fi~dera[ payroll tax coupons forms ~H09 for the year were marked for the incorrect type of tax. Criteria: "lhe organization is required to deposit and pay form 94 taxes to a banking inslilutiou, Effect: Due to the fiailure to approprialely mark the ta~: coupons, the Clinic didn't receive proper credit. Recommendation: Ta~ coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible individual. 
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EMPI,OYEI; W-2 I:ORMS 
Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amount nf Items in Items in Amount of Items Not in Questioned PQpplation Tested (~an~~. ~'opulation "lested Compliance Costs 

Condition: "lhe social security 72 72 8 lax and social security wages were incorrectly reported on golue o21bc I,\'-2's fbr lhe )ear ended Dccenmer 31, 1996. Crileria: The sol:ial secmity wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 Effect: As a result of reporting social security wages higher 'than the cap, the social security wilhheld and reported on the W-2 was 
Reeommelldaliotl: The amount withhcld and reported oll the W-2's should be in accordance ",'~ith the Ctrcular E, Employer's Tax Guide, 25. WlC REIMB|IRSEMENT RI,;QUESTS Condition: The organization 24 could not h)c~te copies of the WIC Program's reimbursement reports for the period February 1996 thru July 1996. As a result. the organization had to obtain copies from the State Criteria: The gr~nt requires thai all odgittat grmlt documents be kept on file for a lninimunl oggour (4) years Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: All original grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years. 26. WIC DISBURSEltlFNTS Condition: I)isbursemcnl 142 10 cheeks wcTc made payable to cash Criteria: "lhe WIC Program grant requires all cheeks be made payable to a vendor 

*Eft?el is either normal not ascellainable or not applicable 

2 

$8,986 $4,082 $160 $L60 



Number of Items in I_'(?pulation 26. WIC I)ISBURSEI'~JENI"S (continued Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restriclions. l~eromnlendalil)n: In the lll!Llrd clICCks should be nladc payable tn the recipient and not cash 27. WIC EXPENI)ITURE REPORT Condition: When requesting reimbursement funds, the organization did nol complete and submil a disbursement report for the month and for the grant period according to budget category. Criteria: q he granl requires thai recipients submit a nlonthly expenditure report ~onsisthlg ol two (2) columns, currenl expenses and a year to date, categorized by budget category. Effect: 3he organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions. 

24 

Recommendation: "lbe organization should follow all giant requirements in the contract 28. Rill PA~,'ROLL AUTIIORIZATION 

Number of Items Nol Dollar in Amount of _(~gjnJ~lia nee Ponnlation 

24 

Condition: Several of the rural 56 health grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documenled in their file. Criteria: In order to comply with Grant requirements, ;~ll employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file Effect: As a restdt of not updating the employees' flle~ for p~yro|l ~ha;~ges, it is impossible to tell whelher employees were colleetly paid. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll ~nlounts sbould bc on file 

* EffEct is cither normal, not ascertainable or not applicable 42 

Dollar Amount of Items Anlounl ol Not in Quesliom d Compliance (o~L~ 



Number of Items in Population 29. Rill I'A"t'ROI~L I)ISBURSEMENTS 
Numbt~r Dollar Number of Dollar Amount Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amouul oJ in Amount of Items Not in Questioned Co~[{anc~ Population "l'cstcd Compliant{" Costs 

Condition: Several of the rural 56 9 health grant employee's payroll did nol agree to their authorized payroll mnount documented in their file Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file Effect: As a result of not updaling the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid, Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 30. WIC PAYROI,L AUTI1ORIZA'I ION Condition: Several of the WIC grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documenled in their file. Criteria: Iu order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WlC grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: If the authorized payroll amount is not on file. il is possible to incorrectly pay employees Re~ommendafion: All current authorized payroll ~nlounls should be on file. WIC PAYROLL I)ISBI1RSEMENTS 

8 

Condition: Several of the WIC 16 2 * grant employees' payroll did not agree to theil authorized payroll amount documented in their file. Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC giant should have their authorized payloll on file 
*Eft-eel is either normal, not e~scertainable or not applicable 
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Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amounl of Items Amount nt Items in Items in Amount of Items Not in Ques6nned ~lation 'l~gt e c| CnQ.mplia nc_e Population 1"rated ('ore Dlian(~ Costs 

WIC PAYROI,I, DISBURSEMENTS (continued} Effect: As, a result of trot updatLng ttle employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid Recommendation: Afi currem authorized payi-oll amounts should be on file PATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMI';NT Condition: Some of the personnel 16 files on the WIC Program employees did not contain a signed patient eonfidenfialily statemenl. Criteria: "lhe grant requires fimt employees witb access to patient information sign a statement that all patient records arc confidential Effect: The grant supporl could possibly be reduced. Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure thai they contain a signed patient confidentiality statement 33. TIME SIIEETS Condition: Asaresultofour 226 23 2 $137,369 $10,023 $563 $563 tests, we rioted lbat some ol'lhe WIC Program employee pay checks were not supported by time sheets. Crit~ria: ~he grant requires that all aetivifics be supported by source document~. Effect: qhe grant suppori could possibly bc reduced. Recommendation: All WIC Program pay checks should be supported by approved time sheets. 34. CORPORA'FE R$'LAWS Condition: qhc Board of Directors current ('omposition and Bylaws do not fully meet the requirements lot the 42CFR 581c 304. 



 
Dollar Number Number of Dollar Amount Number of of Items Not Dollar Amount of Items Amount id Items in Items in Amount of Items Not in Questioned Population Tested Co~lianLe Population TLsIe(! Compliance (ost~ 34. CORPORATE BYLAWS (continued) Criteria: The RHI Grartt requires that the composition and selection of members be in accordance with the requirement.~; of 42CFR 581 c.304 Effect: Failure oldie governing board to meet tile Rill Grant requirements, could result in grant reslrictiom;. Recommendation:: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the Rill ('/rant 35. AUTIIORIZING SIGNATURES Condition: Somcoflhepay 226 23 1 $137,369 $10,023 486 checks for the WIC Progrmn did not contain two (2) authorizing signatures Criteria: All cheeks are required to have two (2) ~mlhorizcd signatures. Effect: Without the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made wilhout direct Board approval Recommendation: All checks should have two (21 autborized signatures. 36. PAID INVOICES Condition: There were instances 142 10 10 $8,986 $4,082 $4.082 $4,082 where some of the invoices for the WiC Prog, ram could not be located Criteria: As per the grant contracls, the organization is required to keep source documenls on file for at le,'tst (d) years, Effecl: "lhe org~tnization could possibly have increased grant restlietions. Recommendation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled with the carbon copy of the check stapled Io the outside. 

*lfl~ct is either normal, not aseerlainable or not applicable 
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Total 



We considered these inslances of noncompliance in assessing whether Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s January 31, 1997 financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and this report does not affect our report dated September 30, 1997, on those finaneial statements. This report is intended for the information of the board of directors, management and the United States Department of Health and Human Services. I lowever, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 
Certified Public Accountants Sep~Lember 30, 1997 



 

M[~ B[R AMIRICAN INSIIT~TE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANrTS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS 
To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches. Louisiana 

MEMBER SOCIUY OF EOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC AC CODt~I~,',IS 

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. I11 our reporl, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope lirrtitation. We were engaged to audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Govemmen.1 Auditing Sta~dard~, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the engagement to audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stm:ements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We were ramble to express an opinion on the financial stal:ements because of a scope limitation. Our engagement to audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The information in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the engagement to audit the basic financial statements and clue to the scope limitation, we are tmable to express an opinion on the Schedule of Federal Awards and to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
Cellified Public Accountants September 30, 1997 
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NATCltlTOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCtlES, LOUISIANA 

FEDERAL G RANTOIU PASS THROUGIt GRANTOR/ 

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

UNIq?ED STATES DEPARTMENT OF' HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE Direct Assistance 

FEDERAL CFDA ffUMlgER AGENCY PASS-THROUGH _ __~_U_M B E R DISBURSEMENTS/ ~ENDITURES 

Community Health Center Rural Health Initiative Grant (RHI)* 93.224 CSH600-53-110 $ 1,877,043 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Passed through Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals: Women, Infant and Children (WIC)* 10.557 N/A 

Total Expenditures 

*Major Federal Awards Program 
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MEME:ER AMERICAN IN STITUT[ OF C[R11~I[D PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS MEMBER SOCIFI ~ Of [OUISIA*,A C[RTIFIED pUBLIC A( COLJ', A',! S -. DAUZAT, BEALI, & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSIONAL CORPOP~TION 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMINISTRATING FEDERAL AWARDS 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, lnc Natchitoches, Louisiana 
We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. We have also audited the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. with requirements applieable to major federal award programs and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. We conducted our engagement to audit the financial statements in accordance with generalb accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abom whether the financi,'d statements are free of nmterial misstatement and about whether Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. complied with laws and regulations, noncompliance with which would be material to a major federal award progranr. In planning and performirlg our engagement to audit for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, wc con:~idered the internal control structure of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. in order to determine our procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. and on its compliance with requirements applicable to major programs and to report on the internal control structure in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to compliance with requirements applicable to federal award programs. We have addressed internal control structure policies and procedures relevant to our engagement to audit of the financial statements in a separate report dated September 30, 1997. 
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]'he management of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control structure are to provide management with Ieasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss froth unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions are executed in accordance with mar~agement's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that the federal award program is managed in compli~mce with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inherent limitations in any internal control structure, errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. For the purpose of this report, we have classified the si~,nificant internal control structure policies and procedures used in administering federal award programs in the following categories: 
General Requirerr~als Political activity Civil rights Cash management Federal financial reports Allowable costs/cost principles Drug-free workplace Administrative requirements Specific RequiretllfBl~ Types of services allowed]disallowed Eligibility Matching level of effort Reporting Claims for advances and reimbursements Amounts claimed or used for matching For all of the internal control structure categories listed above, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant polices and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, and we assessed control risk. 

During the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. expended 100 percent of its total federal awards under the major programs listed in the Schedule of Federal Awards. 
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We performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-133, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design mad operation of internal control structure policies and procedures that we considered relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with specific requirements, general requirements, and requirements governing claims for advances and reimbursements and anaounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to the aforementioned major program which is identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards. Our procedures were less in scope than would be necessary Io render an opinion on lhese internal control structure ~oiicics and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
We noted certain matters involving the internal control structare and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions under standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the interrml control structure that, in our judgment, could adw:rsely affect the Organ~ation's ability to administer federal award programs in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. These reportable conditions include 
SLIDING FEES 
Condition: The Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., did not consistently obtain income verification from patients. 
Criteria: The regulations require that all patients who can pay for services be charged according to a sliding fee schedule. Effect: If the Organization does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic wi not be able to collect all funds due. Reenmmend~tion: The Clinics should verify all patient income and includc documentation in the patient file. 

2. BANK RECONCILIATIONS Condition: Bank reconciliations were nol preformed on a regular monthly basis or agrecd to the g:eneral led[ger cash accounts. 
Criteria: Grant recipients are required to safeguard all assets of the organization. 
Effect: The organization could have misappropriatcd grant funds and not bc aware of thc problem in a limely manner. 
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Recommendation: All bank accounts should be reconciled monthly with their corresponding bank statements and should be compared to the books to ensure that they agree. 3. PURCHASING SYSTEM 
Condition: The current svstem does nol ensure that purchases of supplies and materials m c made tor the lowest available price. As a recipient of federal dollars, the orgmllzation is permitted to purchase goods from vendors under the Louisiana State contract. 
Criteria: Organizations receiving federal assistance must adhere to allowable costs/cost principles. The grant goes further to require that all purchases for goods be necessary and reasonable for the proper administration of the program. Effect: The resulting effect is that the organization will pay more for goods than is necessary or reasonable. Recommendation: ]'he organization should centralize the purchasing function and purchase as many items as possible under state contract. CONTRACT VIOLATIONS 
Condition: We noted that the organization was not making monthly payments under two (2) of their capital leases. Criteria: The lease contracts require that the organization make monthly payments under the tenns of the agreement. Effect: If the organization is found by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agreement, the lessor could require the relmaa of the asset. 
Recommendation: In order to avoid undue hardship on the organization, all requiremcnts under contractual agreement should be adhered to. 
941 PAYROI,L TAX RETURN 
Condition: The payroll tax liability reported on the form 941 was incorrect. Criteria: For the year ended December 31, 1996, the organization did not limit the amount of social security tax paid for individuals who are paid more than $62,700. 
Effect: The organization overpaid the social security payroll tax 
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Recommendation: The organization should review the tax rules published in the Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide. 
6. COST REPORTS Condition: The organization did not file Medicare and Medicaid cost reports for 1996and 1997 in a timely manner. Criteria: In order for the organization to recover amoants due for Medicaid and Medicare claims, the organization is required to file almuat cost reports. Effect: The funds due the organization will not be paid over in a timely manner 
Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure thal the cost reports are fled by the due date. 

7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Condition: The financial transactions for the year ended Jmmary 31, 1997 were not posted to a general ledger. 
Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the financial management system provide an accurate, current and complete disclosure of the financial results of each federally sponsored project. Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having an accounting system in accordance with grant requirements. 
Recommendation: hr order to reduce the risk of errors or irregularities, the accounting; system should record all financial transactions in the books in a timely manner. 
RESULTS OF OPERATION 
Condition: The financial position of the organization was not compared to the budget on a regular basis. 
Criteria: OMB Circular A- 110 requires that the fnancial nmnagement system provide a comparison of oullays with budget mnounts for each award. 
Effect: The organization was unable to properly manage grant results Recommendation: The financial statements should be compared to the budget on a regular basis. 
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9. FIXED ASSETS 
Condition: Policies that are established to control which assets are capitalized or expended are not being followed. 
Criteria: Oh4B Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide effective controls over and accountability of all properly. 
Effect: Without the utilization of property, controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corporate assets. 
Recommendation: Control policies should be modified to ensure that all assets which cost a predetermined amount are being capitalized and recorded on the asset inventory list. ! 0. PROPERTY TAGS 
Condition: The fixed assets do not have property control tags Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A- 11 O, recipients of federal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. Effect: Without the assets being tagged, it will not be readily possible to know which assets belong to the corporation. Recommendation: The items purchased, which meet requirements established by the board for fixed assets, should have an identifying sticker or decal affixed to it. The sticker should have aJa identifying property number and it should also state that the asset is property of the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. 

11. ASSET INVENTORY LIST Condition: The inventory list, which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adcquatel3 identify the assets owled by the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. 
Criteria: In order to safeguard the assets in accordance with the OlVlB Circular, the asse inventory list should be complete. Effect: Without all assets being recorded on the asset list, the organization will not bc able to adequately safeguard all assets. Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory list should be identified b) a serial number when possible and a tag ID number. 



12. PHYSICAL INSPECTION - PROPI~;RTY AND EQUIPMENT Condition: The organization does not forrnally conduct a physical inventory ofpropert3 and equipment on an annual basis. Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-I 10, the recipients of federal assistanc~ should adequalely safeguard all assets. Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, fixed assets could be misappropriated. Recommendation: The organization should have someone from the accounting department conduct an annual physical inventory. 13. SALES TAX Condition: The organization has been paying $488.97 a month in sales tax on the capita lease of the modular building in Tallullah. 
Criteria: In accordance with state law, the organization is not responsible for sales tax or a modular building which is erected and permanently fixed to the location. 
Effect: Tile organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G.E. Capital Recommendation: The organization should approach G.E. Capital and make ever3 attempt to reduce the capital lease obligation by the overpaid sales tax. 14. LEASE AGREEMENTS 
Condition: We noted that some of the lease documents were not on file within tile office 
Criteria: In order to properly execute all contractual obligations, the Clinic should maintain all contract,; ira their current files. 
Effect: Without having the contracts readily available for inspection, the organization could violate the terms of the agreement and be exposed to monetary loss. 
Recommendation: All contracts should be maintained in the office 15. FORM 990 TAX RETURN 
Condition: Form 990, annual income tax return, was not filed on time for thc years cndcd January 31, 1996 and 1997. 



Criteria: ]internal Revenue procedures require that the returns be filed by the fifieentll (15) day of the fifth month following tile close of the fiscal year. Effect: The organization could be subjected to penalties up to $5,000 per year per return Recommendation: The organization should have the returns prepared and filed in a timel3 manner. 
16. LATE AUDIT REPORT Condition: 'lqae organization did not file their January 31, 1997 audit report with the State of Louisiana or their cognizant agency within the required time frame. 
Criteria: In accordance with State law, the audit should be filed with the State of Louisiana within six (6) months from the close of the fiscal year. The United State Department of Health and tluman Services requires that the audit be filed within four (4) months. Effect: The orgmfization could possibly be subjected to further grant restrictions 
Recommendation: The organization should take steps to ensure that the audit is preformed in a timely manner. 

17. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Condition: The accounts payable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a regular basis and did not agree to the general ledger. Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. 
Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position. 
Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts payable outstandin[, are recorded on the books and are listed on the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount. 

18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Condition: The accounts receivable subsidiary.journal was not maintained on a daily basis and did not agree to the general ledger. Criteria: ]n accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide for current and accurate disclosure of the financial activities. 



Effect: Tile organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position 
Recommendation: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts receivable outstanding are recorded on the books ,and are listed in the subsidiary journal by vendor and amount. 

19. LOUISIANA STATE GRANT Condition: The organization refunded to State of Louisiana a grant amount of $150,000 Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes 
Effect: Ineffective cash management system 
Recommendation: Attempts should be made to recover the returned grant funds 20. MEDICAL, SUPPLIES INVENTORY 
Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory on an annua basis. 
Criteria: Ilia accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the recipients of Federal Assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. 
Effect: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, supplies could be misappropriated. 
Recommendation: The organization should have someone conduct an annual physica inventory. 

21. SALE OF ASSETS 
Condition: The organization sold several pieces of equipment without a formal bid process Criteria: In order to receive the maximum dollars for the items sold, the organization should haw." a policy to authorize the sale of assets through a bid process or through an external valuation procedure. 
Effect: The organization was not allowed to sell assets to the highest bidder or receive the true value of the assets sold. 
Recommendation: Before may assets are sold, the accounting department should attempt to acquire an external valuation or perfoma a public bid process. 
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22. STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX Condition: The state quarterly payroll tax returns for the third and fourth quarter of 1996 were not filed or paid on time. Criteria: The organization is required to file and pay the aforementioned reports by October 31, 1996 and January; 31, 1997. Effccl: I)ue to lhe failure to file and pay, the organization will be subjected to unnecessary penalties mad interest. Recommendation: All tax filing and paying deadlines should be strictly adhered to 
23. PAYROLL TAX DEPOSITS 
Condition: The federal payroll tax coupon forms 8109 for the year were marked for the incorrect type of tax. 
Criteria: The organization is required to deposit and pay form 941 taxes to a banking institution. 
Effect: Due to the failure to appropliately mark the tax coupons, the Clinic didn't receive propel" credit. 
Recommendation: Tax coupons should be appropriately marked by a responsible individual. 

24. EMPLOYEE ~-2 FORMS Condition: The social security tax and social security wages were incorrectly reported on some of the W-2's for the year ended December 31, 1996. Criteria: The social security wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 
Effect: As a result of reporting social security wages higher than the cap, the social securil5 withheld zuld reported on the W-2 was incorrect. 
Recommendation: The amount withheld and reported on the W-2's should be in accordance with the Circular E, Employer's Tax Guide. 

58 



25. WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS Condition: The organization could not locate copies of the WIC Program's reimburscmem reports for the period February 1996 thin July 1996. As a result, the organization had to obtain copies from the State. 
Criteria: The grant requires lhat all original grant doemncnts be kept on file lor a mininmn~ of four (4) years. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: All original grant source documents should be kept on file for a period of four (4) years. 26. WIC I)ISBUIISEMENTS 
Condition: Disbursement checks were made payable to cash 
Criteria: The WIC Program grant requires, all checks be made payable to a vendor Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendation: In the future, checks should be made payable to the recipient and nol cash. 

27. WIC FXPENDITURE REPORT 
Condition: When requesting reimbursement funds, the organization did not complete and submit a disbursement report for the month and for the grant period according to budget category. 
Criteria: The grant requires that recipients submit a monthly expenditure report consistin~ of two (2) columns, current expenses and a year to date, categorized by budget category. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions 
Recommendation: ]he organization should follow all grant requirements in the contract 28. Rill PAYRO, LL AUTItORIZATION 
Condition: Several of the rural health grmlt employees did not have an authorized payro amount documented in their file. 

59 



Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossiblt to tell whether employees were correcl]y paid. Recommendation: All current autho:'izcd payroll amounts shouh~ bc on 1]1c 
29. Rltl PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Condition: Sew:ral of the rural health graml employee's payroll did not agree to the authorized payroll anaount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grm~t requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: As a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. 
Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 30. WIC PAY]lOLL AUTHORIZATION 
Condition: ,~everal of the WIC grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amoun documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIG gran should have their authorized payroll on file. 
Effect: If the attthorized payroll amount is not on file, it is possible to incorrcctly pa5 employees. 
Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 31. WIC PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
Condilion: Several of the WIC grant employees' payroll did not agree to their authorizcd payroll anaount documented in their file. 
Criteria: In order to comply with granl requirements, all employees trader the WIC gran should have their authorized payroll on file. 



Effect: A,,; a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. 
Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

32. PATIENT CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMF, NT Condition: Some of the personnel files on the WIC Program employees did not contain a signed patient confidentiality statement. Criteria: The grant requires that employees with access to patienl information sign a statement that all patient records are confidential. Effect:: The grmll support could possibly be reduced. 
Recommendation: All employee files should be updated to ensure that they contain a signed patient confidentiality statement. 

33. TIME SIIEETS 
Condition: As a result of our tests, we noted that some of the WIC Program employee pat checks were not supported by time sheets. Criteria: The grant requires that all activities be supported by source documents 
Effect: The grant support could possibly be reduced 
Recommendation: All WIC Progroan pay checks should be supported by approved time sheets. 

34. CORPORATE BYLAWS Condition: The Board of Directors CUJTent Composition and Bylaws do not fully meet th~ requirements for the 42CFR 581 c.304. Criteria: The RHI Grant requires that the composition and selection of members bc accordance with the requirements of 42CFR 581 c.304. Effect: Failure of the governing board to meet the RHI Grant requirements, could result in grant restrictions. Recommendation: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the R1 Grant. 



35. AUTItOR1ZING SIGNATURES Condition: Some of the pay checks for the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing signatures. Criteria: All checks are required to have two (2) authorized signatures 
Effect: Without the correct mmaber of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without direct Board approval. Recommendation: All checks should have two (2) authorized si[,natures 36. PAID INVOICES 
Condition: There were instances where invoices could not be located. 
Criteria: As per the grant contracts, the organization is required to keep source documents on file for at least (4) years. 
Effect: The organization could possibly have increased grant restrictions Recommendation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled with the carbon copy of the check stapled to the outside. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure elements does not rc'duce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be material to a federal program may occur and not bc detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, ,are believe the reportable conditions noted above involving the internal control structure and its operation are a material weakness. These conditions were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of the procedures to be performed in our audit of the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical (;enter, lnc. With requirements applicable to its major federal award programs for the year ended January 31, 1997, and this report does not affect our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. 
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MEME:IR AM [ RICAN )N SlrlUI[ O$ C[8Tff'IED PUBLIC ACCOLJNTANT~ DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, CPAs A PROFESSION&L CORPORA'lION 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH TItE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAMS 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana 

MEMB[R SOCI[~ Y Of tOL)ISIA~,A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLI'~ A~,T S 

We were engaged to andit the financial statements of Nalchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, lnc. (a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 3 l, 1997, and have issued om report thereon dated September 30, 1997. In our report, our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We have applied procedmes to test the compliarme of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. with the following requirements applicable to its federal awards programs, which are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards, for the year ended January 31, 1997: political activity, civil rights, cash management, federal fmm~cial reports, allomable c~stsfcost principles, drug free work place, an(] administrative requirements. 
Our procedures were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management and Budget's "Compliance Supplement for Audits of Institutions of Higher Learning and Other Non -Profit Institutions". Our procedures were substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion on Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. With respect to the items tested, Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc., complied with the requirements listed in the second paragraph, except as described in the attached schedule. However, the extent of noncompliance noted in our testing indicates that, with respect to items that were not tested by us, there is more than a relati'~e~y low risk that Nalchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. may not bave complied with the requirements referred to in the second paragraph. These 
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MEMBER AME RIC AN INBTITM1 [ OI~ C [~.I[IEIEID PUBLIC ACCOUNIAt~TB MEMBER SOCIETY OE LOUISIA~,A CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLJ~.I~,r~ IS DAUZAT, BEALL & DEBEVEC, C~As A PROFESSIONAl, CORPORATION 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAl, AWARD PROGRAMS 

To the Board of Directors Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc Natchitoches, Louisiana We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. G(a nonprofit organization) as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 1997. Ii1 our reporL our opinion was disclaimed because of a scope limitation. We have also audited the compliance of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. with the requirements govenfing types of services allowed oi' unallowed; eligibility; matching, level of effort, or earmarking; reporting; special tests and provisions; claims for advances and reimbursements; and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to its major federal award program, which is iAentified in the accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards, for the fiscal year ended January 31, 1997. The rrlanagement of Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. is responsible for the Organization's compliance with those requirements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit of compliance with those requirements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Office Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of Institutions of Higher Education and Other Nonprofit Institutions." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perfoml the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the requirements referred to in the second paragraph occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Organization's compliance with those requirements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
As a result of the noncompliance noted in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the organization did not comply with the specific requirements governing it's major programs. 
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Pro~rnn~ 

NATCHITOCIIES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCIIES, LOUISIANA SCItEDULF OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 1N COMPLIANCE WITI1 GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS AI'PI,ICAIILE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31. 1997 

I)EPAWFMENT OF ItEALTII AND IIUMAN SERVICES Rill PROGRAM SLII)ING FEES 

Number of Items in Poimlalion 
Numben" of Items Not ill _f~ m~!li.n rice 

Condition: The Natchitoches 10,530 100 48 Outpatient Medical Center, Inc. did not cor,sistentty obtain income verilicalion from patients Criteria: q he regulalions require that all patients who can pay for services be charged ac~c~rding to ~, sliding fee schedule. Effect: Iflhe Organization does not check and document the patient income, the Clinic will not be able to collect all Ihnds due. Recommc*tdation: "lhe Clinics should verify all patient income ~md incJude documentation in tile patient file BANK RECONCII~IATIONS Condition: Bank reconciliations were nol prelormed on a regular monthly basis or agreed tt~ Ihe general Icdgel cash accoums. Criteria: Gram recipients are requhed to salcguard all assets of the organiz~ttion Effect: '1 h: organization could have misappropriated grant funds and not be aware of Ihe problem in a timely nlanncr. Recommendation: All bank accoul~ts should be r,=conciled monOdy with their corresponding bank statements and should be compared to the hooks to insure that they agree. 

* I~ffcct is ciflwl nominal not ascertainable or not applieahlc. 
6~ 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items ]'opulation .To~_B'd 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Quest*unel~ 



NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCIfES+ LOUISIANA SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITII GFNERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

Rill PROGRAM I'URCIIASING SYSTEM 

Number Number of of Items in Items P ol2uJ,tion Tested. 
Condition: The current system does v, ot closure that purchases of supplies and malerials are made for the lowest available price. As a recipient of red,era[ dollars, tile organization is permitted Io pmchasg goods from ~,~ndots urtdcr the I ,ouisiana State contract Criteria: Organizations receiving federal assistance must adhele to allowable eosL~/cost principles ~lhe grant goes further In require Ihal all purchases for goods be necessary arm reasonable for the proper administration of the program. Effect: The resulting efl~ct is thai the organization will pay mnre for goods tba/l is nece~;sary or reasonable. Recommendation: The organization should centralize tile purcho-sing lunction and purchase as many items as possible under state contract CONTI~,AC I' VIOLA'I IONS 

Number of Items Not Dollar ill _C_o__m [~!i~n!e 

Condition: Wc noted that the 7 7 2 organization was not making monthly payments undeI two (2) of Iheir capilal leases Criteria: The lease contracts require that the organizalion make monthly payments under the terms of the agreenlent. Effect: lithe organization is found by the lessor to be in default of the terms in the agreement, the lessor could require tile return of the asset Recommendation: In order to avoid undue hardship on the organization, all requirements tinder contra<;tual agreement should bc adhered to 
* !~cl is either nominal, not ascertainable ~1 'a~t applicabl~ 
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Amount of Population 
Dollar Amounl Items T.~sted 
Dollar Amount of Items Amour,! I,f Not in Questir,,wd C--ompli~neg ~j+.~J, . 



NATCHITOCIIES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCHITOCFIES, LOUISIANA SCI|EDUIJE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITII GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE I~'ISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31 1997 

Rill PROGRAM 941 PAYROI,L TAX RETURN Collditioll: The payroll tax liability rcporled on the fore1 941 was incorrect Criteria: For tbe year ended I)ccember 3 l, 1996, lbe organization did not limit the amount ot social securdy tax paid for i~di'~iduals who ~am more than $62.700 Effect: "lhe otganizat(on overpaid the social security payroll lax. 

Number Number of of Items in Items P opuho~4~n Tesled 

Recommendation: The organization should review the tax rules published in the Circular E. Employer's Ttrc Guide. COST RH'ORTS Condition: Ihg~rganizatioiidid t0 10 not file Medicare and Medicaid cost reporls for 1996 and 1997 in a lirucly rv/auncr Crileria: In ordcr for the organization to recover arrtounts due for Medicaid and Medicare claims, the organizalion is required to file annllal cost reports. Effert: II:,e funds due the organizalion will not be paid over i~ a timely mantlet. Recommendation: Tile organization should take steps to en:;ure thai the cost reports arc flied by lhe due date 

* l!fl~:ct is eilbcr nominal, not ascertainable ol nol applicable 

NIIm ber of Items Not Dollar in Amount of (:oml]ljancee _~?~pulatinn 
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Dollar Amount of Items Amoullt of Not in Questtot~ed 



NATCHITOCItES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCIIITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITII GENERAl. AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE FISCAl, YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

Rill PROGRAM I:[NANCIAL STATEMENFS Condifion: 111c financial Iransaclions for the year ended January 31, 1997 were not posted to a genct~l ~cdger. Criteria: OMB Circular A-| 10 requires that the firiancial management systenl provide an accurale, current and complclc disclosure of the financial results of each li~derally sponsored project Effect: Irregularities could occur as a result of not having all accounting system in accordance with granl requirements. R~commendafinn: In order to i'eduee the ~-isk of errors or irregularities, the accounting system should record all financial Iransactions in the book~; in a timely manner. RESUI,'I S OF OPERATION Condition: "ltle financial position ol the organization wa_~ not coalpared to Ihe budget on a regular basis, Criteria: OMFJ Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide a comparison of outlays with budget amounts filr each award Effect: "lhe organization wa.s unable to propcrly manage grant results Recomnlendafion: The financial statements should be eortlpared to Ihe budget on a regular basis 

Number of Population_ 

Effect is either nominal, not ascerlainable or not applicable. 

Number of Items Tested 
Number of llems Not in ~9~mm ILLia~n c_e 
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Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items I_'npulariun_ Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount nl Not in Quesllont'd Compliance ( o~!~ . 



!~rngra~ 

NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCtlEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE ~.tlTll GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAl, YEAR ENI)ED JANUARY 31,1997 

Rill PROGRAM FIXED ASSEI'S Condition: Policies tllat are established to control which assets arc q;apitalized or expended are not being followed Crileria: OMB Circular A-110 requires that the financial management system provide cfl~ctive controls over and accountability of nil properly Effect: Without the utilization of properl,', controls, it is possible for the misappropriation of corporale ~sets Recommendation: ( ontrol policies should be modified In ensure that all asseLs which cns{ a predetermined amount are being capilalized and recorded ou the assel inventory list I'ROI)ERT'f TAGS Condilinn: The fixed assels do not have properly control tags Criteria: In accordance wilh OMB Circular A-110. recipients of federal assistance should adequalely safeguard all assels Effect: Witboul the assets being tagged, it will not be readily possible In know which assets belong Io tile corporation Recommendation: ]he items purche~sed, which meet requirements established by tile board for fixed assets, should have an identifying sticker or decal affixed 1o it, ]'he sticker should have an identifying properly number and it should also state thai the asset is properly of the Natchitoches Outpatient Medical Center. Inc. 

Number Number of of Ilems in Items P o i)3~1at in ta Teste(I 

l fl'ect is either nominal, not ~scertainable or not applicable 

Number of Items Not Dollar in _(ZgmpJiance Amount of 
Dollar Amount of Items AmotJnt of Not in Quest H,ne,l 



~'rn~ram 

NATCHITOCHES OUTI'ATIENT MEDICAL CENTER. INC. NATCliITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITll G ENFRAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICAItLE TO FEDERAl, AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31.1999 

ASSFT INVENTORY I,IST Condifio:n: qhe inventory list, which serves to control all fixed assets, did not adequately identify, Ihc assets ox~'rJed by the Natchltc*ches Outpaticnl Medical Center, Inc. Criteria: In order to safeguard tbe assets in accordance with the OMB Circular. I:he asset inventory list should be comptete Effect: Wilhout all asseL'; being recorded on the asset lisk the organization will not he able to adequately' safeguard all assets, Recommendation: All assets recorded on the asset inventory list should be identified by a serial number when possible and a tag II) number. 

Number Number of of Items in Items P01)ulation Tested 

PIIYSICAL INSPE(YI'ION - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN1 Condition: The organization does nol l;arrnally conduct a physical iuventoty of properly and equipment on art annual h,'ts is Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circ ular A- 110. the recipients ofl~dcfal assistance should adequately safeguard all assets ldffecl: Unless someone conducts a physical inspection on an annual basis, fixed assets could be misappropriated Recommendation: Ihe organization should have someone flora the accoulllinp, department conduct an annual physical inventory 

[:fleet is either nominal, not ascertainable or nol applicable 

Number of Items Not in Co~!Ifliance 
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Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items Population Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amounl (if Not in Questionc d ('ompliance _ (7_o'~t, . 



NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCItlTOCHES, LOUISIANA SCtlEDULE OF' FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WlTll GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE FISCAl, YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

Rill I'ROGI~.AM SALES TAX Condition: The organization has been paying $488.97 a month in sales tax on the capital lease of the modular building in Tallullah. Criteria: In actor dance with state law, the organization is not rcsponsibh: for sales lax on a modular building which is erected and permalmmly fixed to the location. Effect: The organization incorrectly paid sales tax to G.E. Capital. Recom met~dation: The otganizatlon should approach GE. Capital and make every attempt to reduce the capital tease obligation by the overpaid sales tax LEASE AGREEMEN~I'S 

Number Number of of Items in Items PO~ j'ested 
25 

Number of Items Not Dollar [i ~9___mEUance Amount of population 
Dollar Amount Items Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Quesibme3 ~'pmpliange _ (~q~ 

Condition: We noted that some 7 7 4 of the lease documents were not on file within the office. Criteria: In order to properly execute all cot~tractual obligation!;. the clinic sl~t~ld maintain all 
Effect: Wittmut havingthe contracts readily available for inspecbon, the organization could violate the terms of the agreement and be expcrsed to monetary loss. Reconlnletldltlon: All contracts should be nlaimfflffed in the office, 

1 fleet is eilht.~r nominal not ascertainable or nol applicable. 74 
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NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NAI'CIIITOCItI'S. LOUISIANA SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITII GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE FISCAl, YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

Rill I'ROG }~.AM FORM 990 TAX RETURN 

Number Number of Number of of Items Not Items in Items in Pooulation Tested C~m~lja nee 
Condilion: Form 990, anmlal 2 2 2 income tax relum, was nol filed o11 time Ibl the years ended January 3L 1996 and 1997. Criteria: Internal Revenue procedures require thal the return!; he filed by the fifteenth 05) day of the fifth month following the close of the fiscal year. Effect: The organization could be subjeclc d to pena~fies up 1o $5,000 per year pet return. Re~ommelldalion: The organization should have the returns prepared and filed in a timely manner I,ATE AUDIT REPORT Condition: The organization did not file their January 31, 1997 audit report with the State of I,ouisiana or their ~ognizaut agency ~ithin the lequiled time frsmc. Criteria: fil accordance with State law, the audit sfiould be filed with the Stale ol Louisiana within six (6) months from the close of tfie fiscal year. ~lhc I}nited State Department ofllealth arid Human Services requires that the audit he filed withill four (4) months Effect: Ih,z organization could possibly he subieeted to fu~the~ gr~nt reslricfions. Reeommer, dalion: the organization should take steps to ensure thai the audil is preformed in a timely manncL 
Efl~cl is either nominal, not ascerlainable mv, ot applicable. 
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Donar Dollar Amount Amount of Items Population Teste[L 
Dollar Amount of Items Amounl ol Not in Questic,ned Coml31iancge ~t~ 



!!rogram 

NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCIIITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCF SVITII GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE F'ISCAI, YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

Rill PROGI~AM ACCOUI~ TS I'AYABLE (ondition: The accounts payable subsidiary journal w~-s not maim~incd on a regular basis and did not agree to the gem:ral ledger. Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-110, the financial management system should provide lot cur~em and accurale disclosure of the finaacial activities. Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial position Recommit, clarion: Steps sh~3uld be taken te ensure that all accounls payable outstanding are recorded in the books and are listed on the subsidiary jovmal by vendor and amoum ACCOUN I'S RECEIVABLE Condition: qhe accounts receivable subsidiary journal was not maintained on a daily basis and did not agree to the peneral ledger Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A. 110, the financial managemel~t system should provide for eurrenl and accurate dlsclosurc of the financial activities. Effect: The organization was not able to properly analyze their financial posilion Reeomnlendafion: Steps should be taken to ensure that all accounts receivable outstanding arc recorded on the boo~:s and arc listed in the subsidiary 3 ournal by vendor and amounl 

Number Nu mber of of Items in Items Population Tested 

l:flbct is cilher nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable. 

Number of Items Not Dollar in (~om_m p_lja n e e 
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Amount of _Population 
Dollar Amount Items Tested_ 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount ol Not in Quest H~ned Compliance (~o~ (, 



Progran~ 

NATCIIITOCHES OIITPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATC|IlTOCHES, LOUISIANA SCllEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITIt GENERAl, AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE FISCAl, YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,1997 

Rill PROGItAM I,OUISIANA STATE GP~AN'I" 

Number Number of of Items in Items P.populatiqn Tested 
Condition: The organization refilnded to the Slat<: of Louisiana a grant amount of $150,0C0. Criteria: The grant could have been used for operational purposes Effect:: In~ffeclivc cash management system. Recommendation: AttempL~ should be made to recover the returned grant funds MEI)ICAL SUPPLIES INVENTORY Condition: The organization does not formally conduct a physical inventory on an atmual basis Criteria: In accordance with the OMB Circular A-110, the lecipiems of Federal Assistance should adequately safeguard all assets. Effect: Unless someone conducts a physicalinspeclion on an annual basis, supplies could he misappropriated. Recommendation: The nrganization should have someone conduct an annual physical inventoly. 

Efl~cl is either nominal, nol ascerlainBbie or not applicable. 

Number of Items Not Dollar in ~_Lo m_xOu~an ce 
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Amount of Pooulation 
Dollar Amount Items Tested_ 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount ol Not in Quesltoned Compliance _~(~L, 



_Program_ 

NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCIIITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCItEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITtt GENERA[. AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAl. YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31. 1997 

Rill PltOf; |LAM I'AYROLE TAX DEPOSITS Condition: The federal payroll tax coupon forms 8109 for the year were marked for the incolrect type of tax. Criteria: "lhe organization is requited t.3 deposit and pay form 941 taxes to a banking institution Effect: Due to the failure to approprialely mark the tax coupons. the Clinic didn't receive proper c:redit 

Number of Items in P__opulation 

Recommendation: 'lax coupons shouhl be appropriately marked by a responsible indi'~iduaL EMPI.(IYEI,~ W-2 FORMS Condition: The social seculity tax mid social security wages were incon'eclly reported on some of tJ'~e W-2's for the year ended De(ember 3 I. 1996. ( riteria: "lhe social sccurity wages exceeded the cap of $62,700 Effect: As a result of reptlrting social security wages higher than the cap, the social security withheld and reported on the W-2 was incorrect I~econlmendation: 'lhe anaount withheld and reported on the W-2's should bc in accordance with the Circular F. Emplo)er's Tax Guide. 

Ifl~ct is either nominal, not &~certainable or not applicable, 

Number of Items Not in _(~J.ian ce 
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Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items 1,0pulation Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Questioned Complianc~ _ (~ost~, 
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NATCIIITOCIIES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCItITOCI[|F,S, LOUISIANA SCtIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WIT]I GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TIlE FISCAl., YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

EPARTMENT O1: AGRICULTURIc: WIC PROGRAM 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 
WIC REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS 

Number of Items Not in (~om p_[iance 

Condition: The organization 24 24 12 could not locate copies of the WIC Program's reimbursement reports for the period l ebruary 1996 thru July 1996 As a result, the organization had to obtain copies frorn the State. Criteria: "Ibe grant requires that all original grant documents be kept on file for a minimum offou (4) years. Effect: The organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions. Recommendation: All original gram source documents shoutd bc kcpt on flit: |br a period of four (4) years WIC DISBIIRSEMENTS Condition: I)isbursemcnt checks were made payable to cash Criteria: Thea WIC Program grant requites, all cbecks be madc p~yable to a vendor Effect: lhe organization could be subjected to increased grant restrictions Recommendafon: In the future, checks should be made payable to tile recipierd and not cash. 

lfleet is either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicahlc. 

0 
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Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items _Population Tested. 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount nf Not in Quest,(med Compliance ~[~ 

$8,986 $4,082 $160 



Program 

NATCHITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC, NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPI,IANCE WITII GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICAIILE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,1997 

WIC PROGRAM WIC EXPENDITURE ItEPORT 

Number Number of of Items in Items P_opulatio~ Tested 
Number of Items Not in 

Condition: When requesting 24 24 24 reimbursement funds, the organization did not complete and submit a disbursement report for the month and fo~ the grant period according to budget category Criteria: The grant requires thai recipientS submit a monthly expenditure report consisting of two (2) columns, current expenses and a ye,.tl" to date, categorized by budget c~tegory. Effect: The organization could be subjecled In increased grant restrictions Recommendation: ]'he organization should follow all grant requlrements in the contract Rill I'ROGRAM RIll PAYROLL AUTIIORIZATION Condilior,: Several of tile rural health grant employees did nol have an atllhorized payroll amounl documented in their file, Criteria: In order to con'lply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health gr an't should have their authorized payroll on file. Effect: A~; a result of not updating the employees" files for p~yroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authori;~ed payroll ~.lnounts should be on file. 
Effect is either nominal, not ascertainable or not applicable. 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items ['opulation "l'est~d 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount (,f Not in Quest~nnr~'l Compliance .~_C~*st~ 



-progrmn 

NATCItlTOCIIES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC, NATCHITOCIIES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUF, STIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITII GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE I'O FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAl. YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31.1997 
Number Numberof of Items in Items P_oopulation Te~teO. 

Rill PROG]RAM Rill I'AYROLL I)ISBURSEMENTS Uondiliozl: Several of the nlra] did nol agree to their authorized payroll amount documented ill their file. Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the rural health grant should have their authorizcd payloII on file Effect: A:; a result of not updating the employees' files for payroll changes, il is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. Recommendation: All current authofizcd payroll amounts should be on file Wl(7 PROGRAM Wl(" I'AYROEL AUTIII)RIZATION Condition: Several of the WIC grant employees did not have an authorized payroll amount documented in their file. Criteria: In order to comply with grant requirements, all employees under the WIC grant should have their authorized 
Effect: If the aulhorized payroll amount is not on file, it is possible to incorreclly pay employees. Recommendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should be on file 

l!fl~ct is either nominal, not ascertainable or nol applicable 

Number of Items Not ill C_om 13Jjanee 
9 

2 8 

82 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of Items _Population TestetL 
Dollar Amount of Items Amount of Not in Queslinned Compliance (~',t~, _ . 



NATCttITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCHITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCItEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WlTll GENERAL AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 
Number Number of of Items in Items Population_ Tested 

WIC PROGRAM WIC PAYROLl, DISBURSEMENTS 

Number of Items Not ill _(__~omD~anee 
Condifio~q: Several of the WIC 16 12 2 grant employees' payroll did not agree to their authorized payroll amount documented in their fi]c. Criteria: In order to carrtpty wilh grant requirements, all employee!; under the WIC grant should have their authorized payroll on tile Effect: As a result of no! upd~finl'. the employees' files for payroll changes, it is impossible to tell whether the employees were correctly paid. Re~onlmendation: All current authorized payroll amounts should he on file PATIEN1 CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMEN'I Condition:: Some of the personnel 16 12 6 files ~tt the WIC Program employee!~ did nol conlain a signed patient conlidcnfiality statement. ( riteria: The grant rcquires that cnnployces with access to patient informafioll sign a statement that all patient records are confidential Effect: the g~ant support could possibly be reduced. Reeomme~,dation: All employee files should be updated to ensure thai they contain a signed patient confidenlia'ity statement, 

Efl~ct is eithe~ n~n~inal, n~t a~certainable or not appli~:~blc. 
g3 

Dollar Dollar Amount Amount of ltem~ _Population TesteqL 
Dollar Amount of Items Amolml <ff Not in Questinned Compliance .~'-_~ ':. 



!'ro~n_ 

NATCIIITOCI1ES OUTPATII~NT MEDICAL CENTER, INC NATCIIlTOCIIES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPI,IANCE WIT}| GENERAl, AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR TItE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31. 1997 

WIC PROGRAM I"IME SII(EETS 

Number Number of of Items in Items Population Tested 
Number of Items Not Dollar in ~'=p~lLI.ia n ce Amount of Population 

Dollar Amount Items Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amoulrt of Not in Questioned Compliance (~ ~_t~ _ 

Condition: As a result of our 226 23 2 $137,369 $10,023 $563 tests, wc iloted that sonic of the WIC Program employee pay checks were not supported by time sheets. Criteria: "I he grant requires thai: all activiti,:s be supported by source documents. Effect: The grant support could possibly b~; reduced, Recommeadationz All WIC Program pi~y checks should be supporled by approved lime sheets. Rill PROG I;:AM CORPORATE BYLAWS Condition: The Board of Directors current Composition and Bylaws; do not fully meet the requiTc~ents for Ihe d2CFR 581c 304. Criteria: I he Rltl Grant requires thal the coraposition and sc:lection of memher!: be in accordance with Ihe requirelnents of 42CFR 581c.30d Effect: l:aihlre of the governing board In meet the Rill Grant requirements, could result in grant restriclions. Recommendation: The Board should take steps to follow all federal mandates of the RHI Grant> 

Efl~el is eilher nominal. IlOl ascertainable or not applicable 



Progrant 

NATCIIITOCHES OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CENTER, INC. NATCIIITOCHES, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS IN COMPLIANCE WITII GENERAl, AND SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM TRANSACTIONS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 1997 

WIC PROGILAM AUTIIORIZING SIGNATURES 

Number Number of of Items in Items P_.~ulatign Tested 
Condition: Some of die pay 226 23 checks for the WIC Program did not contain two (2) authorizing s~gnatures Criteria: All checks are required to have two (2) authorized signatures Effect: Without the correct number of authorized signatures, disbursements could be made without direct Boar:[ approval Reeomme~dation: All checks should have two (2) authorized signatures. PAll) INVOICES Condition: There were instances where some of the invoices for the WIC Progrem could nol be located Criteria: As per the grant contracts, the organiT.ation is requited to keep source documents oll file for at I~~;t (4) years. Effect: The organization could possihly have increased grant restrictions. Recommen,:lation: We recommend that all invoices be kept on file and canceled v,'ilh the carbon copy of the check slapled to tile outside 

I!flect is eith,:r nominah not ascertainable or not applicable 

Number of Items Not Dollar in Amount of Pgpulagon 
Dollar Amouut Items Tested 
Dollar Amount of Items Amou n t of Not in Questioned Compliancg ('o~t,~ 

$137,369 $10,023 $486 

0 10 $8,986 

85 

Total 


